Aot

TRt AT L o0 b o D e L ot i

B vt ot g B
Puvbsardrl Sy B

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

Case Ne. 10-20767-CR-KING(s)
- 18 U.S.C. 81349
I8 US.C. 81347
18 U.8.C.§371
18 U.S.C. § 1936(h)
18 U.S.C. § 19587
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18 U.S.C. § 1956(a)
31 U.S.C. § 5324(a); ()
ISUSL.C.§2 -
18 U.5.C. § 982-

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA /—m‘t\
FHLED by D.C.
Vs, , '
1 FEB -8 2014
LAWRENCE 8. DURAN, _ STEVEN M. LARIMORE
MARIANELLA VALERA, %Ltg-‘;f‘di_;& Diﬁ}j’ CT.
JUDITH NEGRON, e L
MARGARITA ACEVEDO
a/kfa Margarita De La Cruz,
AMERICAN THERAPEUTIC CORPORATION,
and ) . '
MEDLINK PROFESSTONAL
MANAGEMENT GROUP, INC.,
Defendants,
/
SUPERSEDING INDICTMENT
The Grand Jury charges that:
GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

At all times relevant to this Superseding Indictment,
1. The Medicare Program (“Medicare”)' is a federal health care program providing

beneflis to persons who were over the age of sixty-five or disabled. Medicare is administered by

the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS™), a federal agency under the United

States Department of Health and Human Services. Individuals who receive benefits under
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Medicare are referred to as Medicare “beneficiaries.” Medicare is a “health care benefit
program,” as defined by Title 18, United States Code, Section 24(b).
2 Part B of the Medicare program covers partial hospitalization programs (*"PHPs™)

copmected with ihe freatment of mentsl illness. The treatment program of FHPs closely

resemblas that of a highly structured. short-term hospital inpatient prograrm, bui it is a distinct

S

znd organized iniensive irestment program that offers less than 24-hour daily care and is

designed, in pait, 1o reduce mcd:cal costs by treahn_ quahf; ing individoals cuts1de the h03p1taJ
sething. .

3. Under the PHP benefit, Medicare covers thie following services: (1) individual
aﬁd group therapy with physicians or psychologists (or other amhorizéd mental health
professionals); (2) occupétionai theré,py; (3) services of social workers, trained psychiatric
nurée:s, and other staff trained to work with psychiatric patients; (4) drugs a;ld biologicais
furnished for thcf%peutic purposes that cannot be self-administered; (5) individualized activity
ﬁlerapics that are not primarily recreational or diversionary; (6) family counseling (for treatment
of the patient’s condition); (7) patient training and education; and tS) diagnostic services.

4, Medicér¢ generally requires that the PHP be 'provided at a facility that is hospital-
based or hospital-affiliated, but Medicare also allows a PHP to be provided in a Community
Mental Health Center (*CMHC™), which is a provider type under Part A of Medicai'a.

5. Medicare requires that, to qualify for the PHP benefit, the services must be
reasonable and necessary for the diagnosis and active treatment of the individual’s condition,
The progra.m also must be reasonably -expected to improve, or maintain the condition and
ﬁmc‘aonal level of the patient and to prevent relapse or hospﬂahzation The program must be

prescribed by a physician and fumished under the general supervision of a physician and under
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an estzblished plan of treatment that meets Medicare requirements.

6. Tﬁicaliy, a patient who needs this infensive PHP treatment has a Jong history of
mental illne:s.ﬁt that has been treated. Patients are ordinarily referred either {a) by a hospital after
full lIlpa.thn'[ hospitalization for severe mental iliness or (b) by & doctor who 15 trying to prevent

full inpagient hospitalization for a severely menially ill patient thc do:tor has been treating.
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7. Medicare guidelines specifically exclude meals and -Eansportaﬁon from coverage
under the PHP benefit. | |

8. Mediciare- does not cover programs invalving primarily social, recreational, 07
diversionary acﬁ\'ities. | |

9. In order to receive payment from Medicare, a CMHC, medical clinic or physician
is required fo submit a heaij:h insurance claim form to Mcdicarc; called a Form 1450. The claims

may be submitted in hard copy or electronically. A CMHC, medical clinic, and physician may

+ . contract with a billing company to transmit claims to Megdicare on their behalf.

: 10. Part B of the Medicare program also covers diagnostic sleep studies conducted ai
sleep disorder clinics. Medicare covers all reasonable and necessary diagpostic tests gwen for

certain medical conditions when the clinic is affiliated with a hospitel or is under direction and

~ control of physicians; when patients are referred to the sleep disorder clinic by their attending

physician-s and the clinic maintains a record of the attending physician’s orders; and the need for
diagnéstic testing is confirmed Ey medical evidence such as physician examinations and
laboraibry tests. In particular, Medicare pays for sleep studicsr if the patient has symptoms or
complaints of cne of the following écnditions, and only under certain limited circumstances:
nar'colepsy, sleep apnea, hnpeten;é, and rparasom.nia. Chronic insomniz was not covered.

11.  In order to receive payment from Medicare, a sleep disorder clinic is required to

La




T s oo LT Moot SETNE
DoVHATEEY D B SREE DRRE L

submit a health insurance claim form to Medicare, called a Form 1500, The clamms may be

‘submitted in hard copy or.slcctronjca]ly. A sleep discrder clinic may contract with a billing

company 0 transmit claims to Medicare on their behalf.
12, Medicare Part B is admiinistered in Florida by First Coast Service Options

(“FCS0™, which, pursuant fo contract with the United States Department of Health and Human
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Services, serves as a contracted carrier 1o rcceiva; adjgdicare and pay Medicare Part B claims
submitted to it by Madicare beneficiaries, physicians, or CMHCs. Medicare Part B Pays
CMHCs and physicians directly for the cost of PHP services furnished to eligible Medicare
bencﬁciaries:'provi.ded that the services meei Medicare requirements.

Defendants. Relevant Eptities. and Relevant Persons

13.  Defendant LAWRENCE S. DURAN, a resident of Miami-Dade County, was the

manager and owner of AMERICAN THERAPEUTIC CORPORATION and MEDLINK

PROFESSIONAL MANAGEMENT GROUP, INC. Though DU'RAN confrofied the dai]y-

~ operations of AMERICAN THERAPEUTIC CORPORATION, he was not listed on

AMERICAN THERAPEUTIC CORPORATION’S State of Florida corporate records.

. DURAN was listed on the State of Florida coi'porate records of MEDLINK FROFESSIONAL

MANAGEMENT GRDﬂP, INC. as president, registered agent, and director. Durar was aiso
the registered agent for the American Sleep Institute. |

14,  Defendant MARIANELLA VALERA, a resident of Miami-Dade County, was
the owner, CEO, president, secretary and treasurer of AMERICAN THERAPEUTIC
CORPORATION. VALERA was also the vice president of the American Sleep Institute.

15.  Defendant JUDITH NEGRON, 2 resident of Miami-Dade County, was the viee

presidant'and part owner of MEDLINK PROFESSIONAL MANAGEMENT GROUP, INC.
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and owner and president of the American Sleep Institute.
16.  Defendant MARGARITA ACEVEDO, a/k/a Margarita De La Cruz, 2 rasidcﬂtr
of Mimmi-Dade County, was the Marketing Director of AMERICAN THERAPEUTIC

CORPORATION. ACEVEDO  supervised AMERICAN  THERAPEUTIC

" CORPORATION'S rmarketers but worked for MEDLD\"F{ PROFESSIONAL
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MANAGEMENT GROUF, INC.

17 Defendant AMERICAN THERAPEUTIC CORPORATION ("ATC") was 2
lFlorida corporation originally established in 2002 and was headquartered in Miami, Florida,
ATC operated several purported PHPs throughout Florida from Homestead fo Orlando,
including PHPs at the following addresses: 1801 NE 2™ Avenue, Miami, Florida 33132; 61
Grand Canal Drive, Suite #100, Miami, Florida 33144; 1001 West Commcfcial Blvd, Fort
Lauderdale, Florida 333 09; 4960 North Dixie Highway, Fort Lauderdale, Florida 53334; 27112
South Dixie Highway, Naranja, Florida 33032; 717 East Palmetio Park Road, Boca Raton,
Florida 33432; and 4750 North Orangé Blossom Trail, Orléndo, Florida 32810.

18, Defendant MEDLINK PROFESSIONAL MANAGEMENT GROUF, INC.

| (“MEDLINK™) was a Florida corporation established in 2003 and was headquartered at 484

Brickell Avenue, Suite 1220, Miami, Floﬁda 33132 and- Jater at 1809 NE 2™ Avcnue; Miami,

Florida'33132, MEDLINK was a company LAWRENCE 8. DURAN, JUDITH NEGRON,

. and other co-conspirators used as a vehicle to charge monthly fees fo ATC for menaging ATC’s

operations, including hiring employess, running daily operations, and confrolling finances and
other site management activities.
19, The American Sieep Institute (“ASI™) was a Florida corporation established in

2005 and was headquartered in Miami, Florida at the offices of MEDLINK. ASI was later-
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. headquartered in Hialeah, Florida. ASI was a company owned and operated by LAWRENCE S.
' DURAN, MARIANELLA VALERA, snd JUDITH NEGRON that purportedly provided sleep
~ study éervices. | ”

20, ‘Addana Mejia, a resident of ‘Miami-Dade County, cashed checks for ]\’EEDLINK

and was the ownper of multiple companies used fo conceal the illicit conversion of checks info
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cash. Thosa companies included Andorra Printer Designs, Computer Resources Management
Review Company, Pulp & Paper Company, Stamina Compazy, and FREE OF DIRT.COM.

. 2L -a resident of Miami-Dade County, cashed checks for MEDLINK -
and was a co-owner of —sed by himself and others to conceal
the illicit conversion of checks into cash,

COUNT 1
Conspiracy to Commit Health Care Fraud
(18 US.C. § 1349)
I, Paragraphs 1 throngh 21 of the General Allegations section of this Superseding
Indictment ave realleged and incolrporated by referenc_e as though fully set forth herein. -
2. . From on or about December 13, 2002, through on or about October 21, 201, in
Miami-Dade County, in the Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendants,
LAWRENCE S. DURAN,
MARIANELLA VALERA,
. JUDITH NEGRON,
MARGARITA ACEVEDO
a/k/a Margarita De La Cruz,
AMERICAN THERAPEUTIC CORPORATION,
and ' -
MEDLINK PROFESSIONAL MANAGEMENT GROUR INC,,
did knowingty and wilifully combine, coﬁspirc, confederate and agree with each other and with

others, known and unknown to the Grand Jury, to viotate Title 18, United States Code, Section

1347, tft_w.t is, to execute a scheme and artifice to defraud a health care benefit program affecting

6
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commerce, a5 defined in Title 18, United States Code, Section 24(b), that is, Medicare, and o
| obtain, by means of meaterially false and fraudulent pretenses, representations, md'promises:
money and property avmed by, and under the custody and confrol of, said health care benefit
proérm, in connecdon with the delivery of and payment for heaith care benefits, fiems, and

SErViCEes.

PURPOSE OF THE CONSPIRACY

3. It was a purpose and object of the conspiracy for LAWRENCE S, DURAN,
MARIANELLA VALER4A, JUDITH NEGRON, MARGARITA ACEVEDO, ATC, -
MEDLINK, and their co-conspirators to unlawfully enrich themselves by, amoag other tlungs
(8) submitting and causing the suEmission of false and fraudulent claims to Medicare tlzroﬁgh
ATC and AS] for services that were medically unnecessary, that were not eligible for Medicare
reimbursemnent, and that were never provided; (b) offering and paying kickbacks and bribes (1)
to patient brokers, ALF owners, and Halfway House owners who provided and had access to
Medicare beneficiaries to attend ATC®s CMHCs and AST’s sleép studies who were not eligible
to receive PHP services and sleep studies; for whom PHP services-and sleep studies were not
medically necessary to ’m;:at their medical conditions, and fo whom the PHP services were not
provided, and (2) to ineligible Medicare beneficiaries to attend ATC’s CMHC and AST’s sleep
studies when reimbursible PHP services and sleep studies were not medi(:'aliy Necessary or not
prévidad; (€) recciving kickbacks and bribes to ensure the atteadance of these ineligible
Medicare beneficiaries at ATC's CMHCs and ASI; (d) concealing the submission of false and
fraudulent claims to Medicare, the receipt and transfer of the proceeds from the frand, and the

- payment of kickbacks and bribes to patient brokeré, ALF oymérs and Halfway House owners,

and Medicare beneficiaties; and (e) diverting proceeds of the frand for the personal use and,




henefit of the defendants and their co-conspirators in the form of compensation and. other

TemUNETation,

MANNER AND MEANS
The manher and means by which the defendants a.nd ‘their co-conspirators sought to

accomplish the object and purpose of the conspiracy included, among others, the following:

. 4. LAWRENCE S. DURAN and MARIANELLA VALERA would form ATC as
a company registered in the State of Florida and agree to conceal DURAN’S ownership of ATCV
from the Medicare program. .

5, . LAWRENCE S. DURAN and JUDITH NEGRON would open MEDLINK as
a company registered in the State of Florida as a vehicle through which to charge ATC monthly
mmanagement fees for activities éuch as hiring employees, running daily operations, and
coﬁtroliing finances and other site maﬁagement activities, when in realitg) there Wé.s no |
distinction between the leadership and managcmcnt of ATC snd MEDLINK.

6. MARLANELLA VALERA would maintain a Medwa:e provider numbcr for five
of ATC's locations in order to submit Medicare claims for PHP services at all of ATC's
locations. |

7. LAWRENCE S. DURAN, MARTANEILA VALERA, and JUDITH
'NEGRON would hire physicians, therapists, and office staff at the ATC locations.

8. LAWRENCE S, DURAN, MARIANELLA VALERA, .and JUDITH
NEGRON wduld form ASI as a company registered in the State of Florida and agree to conceal
DURAN'S involvement in ASI from Medicare and further agree to refer patients from ATC to

AS]I as an additional source of Medicare billing.

9. JUDITH NEGRON-would maintain a Medicare provider number for ASL in
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order to submit Medicare claims for sleep study services.
10. LAWRENCE S. DURAN, MARIANELLA VALERA, JUDITH NEGRON,
MARGARITA ACEVEDO, and their co-conspirators would pay and eause the payment of

Kickvacks to owners and operators of Assisted Living Facilities (“ALFs"} and Halfeay Houses
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in exchange for the ALFs and Halfway Houses delivering ineligible patients housed at their

gacilities to ATC and to ASL In some instances; ALF and Halfway House owmers and operators

would then use & porfion of the kickbacks t‘ﬁejr received from ATC to pay kjckbacks to the
patients being sent to ATC and ASL - |

11. LAWRENCE S. DURAN, MARTANELLA VALERA, JUDITH NEGRON,
MARGARITA AC'EVED 0, and thcir co-conspirators would also pay and .cause the iaaymcnt of

kickbacks to patient brokers in exchange for those patient ‘broke'rs providing Medicare

portion @f' the kickbﬁcks they received to ‘pay dekbacks to the patients being sent to ATC and
ASL | o |

1> LAWRENCE S. DURAN, MARIANELLA VALERA, JUDITH NEGRON,
and their co-conspirators would cause the alteratibn of patient files, as well as therapist uofes

maintained in ATC’s computer system, for the purpose of making it falsely appear thai patients

being treated by ATC qualified for PHE treatments,

13. LAWRENCE S. DURAN, MARIANELLA VALERA, JUDITH NEGRON,
and their co-conspirators would cause doctors to refer ATC patients who did not qualify for

sleep study services to AST. _
" 14,  LAWRENCE S, DURAN and MAMMELLA YALERA would instruct

employees and doctors to alter diagnoses and medication fypes and levels to make it falsely




appear that the patients who were purportedly freated at ATC qualified for PHP services.

15. MARIANELLA VALERA would cause the length of patient stays at ATC to be

based on the maximum number of days Medicare would pay for PHP services rather than on

“actual patient medical needs.

16. LAWRENCE S. DURAN, MARIANEILA VALERA and JUDITH

e Y st e kb 4

NEGRON would maintsin multiple corporate bank accounts for ATC and MEDLINK at

verious financial institutions in the State of Florida..

17, LAWRENCE §. DURAN, MARIANELLA VALERA, JUDITH NEGRON,

MARGARI’I_A ACEVEDOQ, ATC, MEDLINK, and their co-conspirators would cause claims

o be submitted to Medicare for services purportedly provided at ATC’s and ASD's locations in

an amount exceeding $200 million.
18. LAWRENCE S. DURAN, MARIANELLA VALERA, JUDITH NEGRON,

MARGARITA ACEVEDO, and their co-conspiretors would then fransfer and disburse, and

~ cause the fransfer and disbursement of, illicit proceeds derived from the frandulent billing

scheme into and out of ATC's, ASI’s, and MEDLINK’s various corparate bank accousts to
themselves and others. |
In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1349.
COUNTS 2-12
Health Care Fraud
(18 U.8.C. §§ 1347 and 2)
| Paragrephs 1 thuough 15, 17, and 19 through 21 of the General Allegations

section of this Superseding Indictment are realleged.and incorporated by feference as if fully set

forth herein,

2 On or about the dates set forth below, the exact dates Being unknown to the Grand

10




Jury, in Miami-Dade County, in the Southern District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendants -

listed below, each aided and abetted by each other, and by others known and unknown to the

Grand Jury, in conneciion with the delivery of and payment for health care banefits, items, and

services, did knowingly and willfully execute, and attempt to execate, & scheme and artifice to

defraud & health care benefit program affecting commerce, as défined in Title 18, United States

Cods, Section 24(b), that is, Medicare, and obtain, By means of materially false and frapdulent

pretenses, representations, and promises, money and property owned by, and under the custody

and control of, Medicare, in co;:mection with the delivery of and payment for health care benefits,

items, and services, as listed below:

i1

2 LAWRENCES. | L.B. Group . 7/25/08 52875 20820700676805 | -
: DURAN, - Psychotherapy, :
MARIANELLA Training &
YALERA, Education
ATC Services
3 LAWRENCES. |LB. Group - | 8/29/08 $2875 20824200775003
DURAN, Psychotherapy, : -
MARIANELLA Training &
YALERA, ' Education
ATC, Services
4 LAWRENCES. | R.D. | Group 10/11/08 | $1375 | 20828500884203
DURAN, Psychotherapy :
MARIANELLA o '
VALERA,
ATC
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5 LAWRENCE S, [ RD. Group 1/9/05 1500 2900900868705
DURAN, Psychotherapy, .
MARIANELLA Training &

VALERA, Education
ATC Services

6 LAWRENCES. |RM. | Group ~'12/20/00 31200 20905100868905

DURAN, Pgychotherapy,
MARIANELLA Training &
VALERA, Edueation
JUDITH Services
NEGRON,

ATC

7 LAWRENCES. |RM. | Group 5/22/09 32000 20914200722005
DURAN, Psychotherapy, FLA
MARIANELLA Training &

VALERA, Education
JUDITH Servipes
NEGRON,

ATC '

8 LAWRENCES. [ KX, Group 7/24/09 $2000 | 20920500613005
DURAN, Psychotherapy, - FLA
MARJANELLA Training &

VALERA, Education
ATC Services

9 LAWRENCES, | E.L. Group 10/16/09 | $1600 20928900636005
DURAN, Psychotherapy, | FLA
MARIANELLA Training &

VALERA, Education
ATC Services

10 LAWRENCES. | E.L, Group 2/12/10 $1200 21004300441205
DURAN, Pgychotherapy, ’ FLA
MARIANELLA Training & ‘

VALERA, Fducation
ATC Services

12
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11 . |LAWRENCES |S8.C Growp 5/17/10 £2800 21013701114905
DURAN, Psychotherapy, FLA -
MARIANELLA Training &

VAT ERA, Education
ATC Services
12 LAWRENCE S |0l Group 6/30/10 $2000 21018100693505
‘ DURAN, Psychotherapy, FLA
MARIANELLA Training &
VALERA, Education
ATC Services

In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Sections 1347 and 2.

COUNT 13
Conspiracy to Defraud the United States and to Receive and Pay Health Care Kmkbacks
‘ (18US.C. § 371)

1. . Paragraphs | through 21 of the General Allegations section of this Superseding
Indictment are realleged and incofporated by reference as though fully set forth herein.
2.  From on ar about December 13, 2002, and continuing through on or about
- October 21, 2010, in Miami-Dade County, in the Southern District of Florida, and-elsewhere, the
defendants, |
LAWRENCE S, DURAN,
MARIANELLA VALERA,
JUDITH NEGRON,
MARGARITA ACEVEDO .
a/k/a Margarita De La Cruz,

and

AMERXCAN THERAPEUTIC CORFPORATION,

13




did willfully, that is, with the intent to firther the objects of the conspiracy, and knowingly
combine, conspire, confederate a.ud aoree with each other and with others known and unknown
to the Grand Jury, to commit certain offenses against the United 'Staie:s, that is, |

s To defrand the United States by impairing, impeding, obsirecting, and defeating through -

deceitfl and dishonest means, the lawful government functions of the United Staieg

PRy
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| Department of Health and Human Services in its administration and oversight of the
Medicare program, o
b To violatc Ti"cle. 42, United States Code, Section 13202-7b(b)(1), by knowingly and
wilifully sohcztmg and recewmg remuneration, specifically, kickbacks and bribes,
directly and md_rectly, overtly and covertly, in re:tum for referring individuals for the
furnishing and arranging for the fux_mshmg of any itern and service for W‘]:gch payment
may be made in whale or in part by a federal health care pi:ogram, that is, Medicere; and
in return for the purchasing, leasing, ordering, and arrauging for and rccqmménding the
purchasmg, 1easmg, and ordering of any good, itern, and service for which payment may
~be macle in whole and in part by & Federal health care program, that is, Medlcare and
c. To violate Title 42, United States Code, Section 1320a-7b(b)(2), by knowin_gly and
~ willfully offering and paying remuneration, including kickbacks and brilses, directly and
indirecﬂy, overtly" and covertly, in return for referring individuals for the furnishing and
arranging for the fumishing of any ifcm and service for which payment may be made in
~ whole or in part by a federal health care program, that is, Medicare; and in réturn for the
purchasing, leasing, ordering, and arranging for and recomﬁlending the purchasing,
leasiﬁg, and ordering of any good, iter, and service for which payment may be made in

whole and in part by a Federal health care program, that is, Medicare.

14




PURPOSE OF THE CONSPIRACY
3. Tt was a purpose of the conspiracy for the defendenis and their co-conspiratm:s‘ to
mlawfully enrich themselves by receiving and paying kickbacks and bribes in exchange for

(z) securing the attendance of Medicare beneficieries at ATC and ASI and (b) providing

beneficiary information that was used to subﬁﬁt claims to Medicare.
| MANNER AND MEANS OF THE CONSFIRACY
| The manner and rnéans by which the defendants and their co-conspiratars so@t o |
- accomplish the objects and purpose of the conspiracy incl_uded, among others, the following:

4. LAWRENCE S. DURAN, MARIANELLA VALERA, JUDITH NEGRON,
MARG&RI’I‘A ACEVEDO, ATC, and their cq—cons;pi:ators would pay and cause the payment
of kickbacks to owners and 0pe£ﬁtors of ALFs and Halfway Houses i::.L exchange for the ALFs
and Halfway Houses delivering patients housed at their facilities to A‘I“C. In some instances,
ALF and I—Ialﬁﬁay House owners and operators would then use-a poﬁion,of the kickbacks they .-

‘lIE:CEi\'ed from ATC to pay kickbacks to the patients being sent to ATC. | |

5. LAWRENCE S. DURAN, MARINELLA VALERA, JUDITH NEGRON, and
MARGARITA ACEVEDC would re_cru.it and cause the recmitmént of ALF and Halfwﬁy
House ewners and operafors to agree to rcgulgrly provide Medicare beneficiaries to partitipate in
the ATC programs in exchange for kickback payments.

6. LAWRENCE 8. DURAN, MARINELLA VALERA, JUDITH NEGRbN, and
MARGARI’I"A ACEVEDO wonld also recruit and céuse the recruitment. of patient brokers fo
f)rovide regularly Medicare beneficiaries to participate in the ATC programs in exchange for
kickback payménts. ‘These patient brokérs would provide patients ﬁ'om ALFs and Halfway

Houses they owned or with which they had relationships on a regular basis in exchange for bi-

i5
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-monthly payments ﬁ'om ATC and Medlink.
7.‘ " LAWRENCE S. DURAN, MARIANEILA VALERA JUDITH NEGRON '

MARGARITA ACEVEDO, ATC, and their- CO-CONSPIrators would pay and cause paymant of

" millions of dollars in kickbacks fo patient brokers and the owners and operators of ALFs and

Halfway Houses in exchange for the patient brokers snd ALF and Halfway House owners and
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- operators providing Medicare beneficiaries to attend programs at ATC for which ATC then filed

cleims with Medicare,

8. MARGARITA ACEVEDO and her co-conspirators would serve as the primary

contact for the ALF and Halfway House owners and operators and would provide kickback’

payments to the ALF and Halfway House owners and operators.
QVERT ACTS
In fartherance of the conspiracy, and to accomplish its objects and purposs, at least one

of the conspirators cornmitted and caused to be committed in the Southern District of Florida at

least one of the fol.iovnug overt acts, among othcrs

8. On or about December 13, 2002, MARIANELLA YALERA filed amcles of

incorporation for ATC with the State of Florida.

'10: . On or about January 3, 2003, LAWRENCE 8. DURAN and MARTANELLA

- VALERA obtained joint signature authority for a corporate bank account of ATC, Wachowa

Bank account number ending in 2210,
11. On or about December 17, 2003, LAWRENCE S. DURAN and JUDITH

NEGRON obtained joint signature authority for a corperate bank account of MEDHNK,

Wachovm Bank account numbcr enchng in 0305,

12 On or about Aprl 6, 2009, a co- consp1rator negotiated a kickback check

16
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numbered 32482 in the approxiﬁlate amount of §14,145 written from the ATC Wachovia Bank
account ending 2210,

13. On or about Apn.'! 7, 2009, & co-conspirator nagouated three kickback checks
written to a company controlled by the co-conspirstor, numbered ;2706 in the approximate

amournt of $5.355, 32412 in the approximaie amount of $3, 900 and 32480 in the approximate

: arnount of $40,000, and a kickback check Wnttcn to the oo-consplrator numbered 32491 in rhe.-

approximate amount of $20,000written from the ATC Wachovia Bank account ending 2210.
14, On or about January 8, 2010, a co-conspirator negotiated two kickback checks,

numbered 8055 in the apprdximaie amount of $6,150 and 8057 in the approxixdaie. amount of

: $I 500, written from the Medlink Wachowa Bank account ending 0305.

15. On or about February 19, 2010, a oownsplrator negonated two kickback checks ,

* pumbered 8174 in the épp_roximate amount of §$5,750 and 8242 in the approximate amount of

85,750, written from the Medlink Wachovia Bank account ‘endjng 0305.

16. On or about February 19, 2010, a co-conspirator negotiated & kickback check
numbered 8173 in the approximate amount of $1000 written from the Medlink Wachovia Baak
account cndi'ng 0305. |

17. On or about May 17, 2010, & co-conspirator 'negotiated a kickbac}{ check
numbered 38178 in the approximate amount of $5000 written from the ATC Wachovia Bank
account ending 2210. | ' |

18.  In or about April 2007, MARGARiTA ACEVEDO_,,on behalf oerAWRENCE
S. DURAN MARIANELLA VALERA, JUDITH NEGRON, and ATC, paid kickbacks to a

co-conspirator 1o secure patienfs for ATC and ASI, including Medicare beneficiaries T.B. and

1.3,
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19.  Om or sbout April 10, 2007, ASI submittsa a claim in the approximate amount of
$1,600 to Medicare for services pmportedjf provided. to Medicare beneficiary T.B. | |

20.  On or abowur April 24, 2007, A‘TC submitted a claim in the approximate amount of
$1,625 to Medicers for services purportedly provided 'i:o Medicare beneficiary TR

21, On or sbout May 3, 2007, ATC submitted a claim in the apprdximate amaunt of

$2,250 10 Medica_re for services purportedly provided to Medicare beneficiary T.B.

22, Cn or about May 23, 2007, ASI submitted a'claim in the -approximatc amonnt of
$1,600 to Medicare for services pmpoﬁedly provided to Medicare beneﬁciary T.B.

3. On or about May 9, 2007, ATC submitted a ciaim in the approximate amount of
§4.625 to Medicare for services purportedly provided to Medicare beneficiary 1.8,

24,  On or about May 9, 200-7 AST subrmitted a cléim in the approximate amount of
$1.200 to Medicare for services pmpo;tedly provided to Medicare beneficiary J.S.

Allin v-iol'ation of Tifle 18, United States Code, _Section 371.

_ COUNT 14
Conspiracy to Commit Money Laundering
(18 U.S.C. § 1956(h))

The mahm:r and mcan;s by which t.he defendants an'd their co-conspirafors sought to

wcoﬁpﬁsh the object and purpose of the conspiracy included, among others, the foliowing:

1. Paragraphs | through 16 and 19 through 21 of the General Allegations section of

this Superseding Indictment are reallegcd and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth

herein.

2. From on or about December 13, 2002, and continuing through on or about

" QOctober 21, 2010, in Miemi-Dade County, in the Southern .District of Florida, and elsewhere, the

defendants, 7

18




e L P AL e ek

t e PREVEEETR
EF AR E N

P 33.., T
& popne Pk T M e s LA st g o
T S e oy TR L A L B TP

LAWRENCE 8. DURAN,
MARIANELLA VALERA,
JUDITE NEGRON,

~ and
MARGARITA ACEVEDO
a/k/a Margarita De La Cruz,

 did willfully, that is, with the intent to fusther the objects of the conspiracy. and knowingly

combine, conspire, and agree with each other and with other persons, ¥known and unknown to the

Grané Jury, to commit offenses zgainst the United States in violation of Title 18, United States

Code, Sections 1956 and Sc;:ﬁop 1957, to wit:

a

to knowing!y conduct a ﬁnancis.l transaction affecting interstate and foreign
commerce, which financial transaction invalved the proceeds of specified
mﬂawﬁﬁ activity, knowing that the property involved in the financial transaction
represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity, and knowing that the
transaction was designed in whole and in part 1o conceal and disguise the nature, |

the location, the source, the ownership, and the control of the proceeds of

| specified unlawful activity, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section

1956(a)(1)B)G); and

to knowingly conduet a financial transaction affecting inferstate and foreign

" commerce, which financial transaction involved the proceeds of specified

unlewful activity, knowing that the property involved in the financial transaction
represented the procéeds of some form of unlawful activity, and with the infent to
promote the carrying on of the spcéiﬁad unlawiul actvity, in violation of Title 13,
United States Code, Section 1956{a)(1)(A)(@):

to knowingly engage in a menetary transaction by, through, and toa financial

institution, affecting interstate and foreign commerce, in criminally derived
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property of a value grcﬁter than $10,000, such property having been derived from
spetified unlawful activity, in violaﬁon of Title 18, United States Code, Section
1857, | o

Itis fﬁ;T_hcr alleged that thé specified unlawfil activity is health care .ffaud_, n viola_,ﬁon of Title

18, United States Code, Section 1347, and conspiracy 1o defraud the United States and to receive

and pay health care kickbacks, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371,

All in violation of Tifle 18, United States Code, Section 1956(k).

- PURPOSE OF THE CONSPIRACY

| 3. It was a purpose of fhe conspiracy for the defendants and their co—consﬁi.ré;érs 1o
enpgage in money jaundesing for the purpose of (1) unla.wful.ly enriching th;amselves and their co-
conspirators; (2) providing cash to LAWRENCE 8. DM and other co-conspirators in order
to pay kickbacks in exchange for providing Medicare bcncﬁc;'.ar'ijcs to ATC so that ATC conld
bill Medicare for services that were mcdicaﬂy unﬁcccssa:y and not provided; énd (3) concealing
and disguising the nature, location, source, ownership, and control of the proceeds of their heslth
care fraud and kickback offenses.

MANNER AND MEANS

4. . LAWRENCE S. DURAN and MARIANELLA VALERA _wc;uld cause ATC fo

make regular payments to Medlink out of ATC accounts that received Medicare payments. |
s, MARIANELLA VALERA, JUDITH NEGRON, MARGARITA ACEVEDO,

and their co-coﬁ—spirators would register piwny corperations With the State of Florida and dpén
bank zccounts in the namés of those corporations;

6. LAWRENCE S. DURAN, JUDITH NEGRON and their co~co;;|spirators, would

write checks ‘and make wire transfers from Mcdlink accounts to LAWRENCE S. DURAN,

20
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JUDITH NEGRON, MARIANELLA VATERA, MARGARITA ACEVEDO, and their co-
conspirators, and to coméanies owned and controlled by éne:m, for the purpose_of c&shing or
depositing the checks and withdrawing the proceeds of the checks and wire transfers and
retwning the cash to DURAN and YALERA.

7. LAWRENCE §8. DURAN, MARIANELLA VALERA, and their co-

T B ety Tond iy ]
S

conspirators, would write checks and make wire frensfers from ATC acounfs to DURAN,

JUDITH NEGRON, VALERA, and their co-conspirators, and to éompauies owned and

controlled by them, for the pu:pose of cashing or deposiﬁng ﬂ_:le checks and withdrawing the

. proceeds of the checks and wire transfers and returning the cash to DURAN and VALERA.

8  MARIANELLA VALERA, JUDITH NEGRON, MARGARITA ACEVEDO,
and their co-conspirators would .cash checks at different bank branches and different banks
order to avoid scrutiny, comceal the purposes of their activities, and evade reporting

requirements. )

5. LAWRENCE S. DURAN, MARIANELLA VALERA, and JUDITH
NEGRON would cause the payment of monthly, bi-weekly, and weekly payments from
MEDLINK to their co-conspi.ra;tors despite the fact that the co-conspirators had no jb;é ﬁmcti.ons

at Medlink or ATC, other than laundering money. .

10. IAW;.RENCE S. DURAN, MARIANELLA VALERA, JUDITH NEGRON,

and their co-conspirators would launder millions of dollars over the course of several years,

il Once the cash was returned to LAWRENCE S, DURAN and MARIANELLA

VALERA, they would distribute portions of the cash to VALERA, MARGARITA

' ACEVEDO, and their co-canspirators, to pay kickbacks to ALF and Halfway House owners an_dl

operators.
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12. LAWRENCE S. DURAN, MARIANELLA VAILERA, and JUDITH

NEGRON would also pay checks and cash to patient brokers as compensation for providing
Medicare beneficiaries i0 ATC and ASI who were ineligible for the treatment ATC and ASI _.
puxported 1o provide.

| COUNTS 15 -27

" Money Laundering
(18 US.C. § 1957)

1. On or about the dates set forth below, in Miami-Dade County, in the Southern
District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendants listed below did knowingly eﬁgége and atfempt

to engage in monetary transactions affecting inferstate commerce, by, through, and to a financial

institution, in criminally derived property of a value greater than $ 10,000, and such property

having been derived from specified nnlawfil activity, as more specifically described below:

Count Defendants Monetary Transaction Approx.
' : Date
i5 LAWRENCE | Negotiated Medlink check number 2805 in the 4/13/06
S. DURAN, approximate amount of $30.000 usmg an account
JUBITH ending in 1998 held by
NEGRON
16 LAWRENCE | Negotiated Medlink check number 2899 in the 5/30/06
S. DURAN, approximate amount of vsing an account
JUDITH ending in 1998 held by '
NEGRON
17 LAWRENCE | Negotiated Medlink check number 4359 in the 5/14/07
S. DURAN, approximate amount of $15.000 using an account
JUBDITH ending in 1998 held by
NEGRON : o :
18 LAWRENCE | Negotiated Medlink check number 4677 in the 7124/07
S. DURAN, approximate amount of uging account
JUDITH ending in 1998 held by w ‘
NEGRON .
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18 LAWRENCE {Negotiated Medlink check number 6854 in the 3/9/0%
S. BURAN, approximate amount of $57,333.33 endorsed over
JUDITH fo account ending in 7532
NEGRON : ' _

20 LAWRENCE | Received wire transfer from Medlink account in the | 4/10/09
S.DURAN, | approximate amount of §106,000 to an account held
JUDITH by Mejia .

NEGRON

21 LAWRENCE | Received wire transfer from Medlink account in the | 4/24/09
S. DURAN, approximate amount of $18,100 to an account held
JUDITH by Mejia

| NEGRON _
C 22 LAWRENCE | Received wire fransfer from Medlink account in the | 4/24/09
: S. DURAN, approximate amount of $21,200 fo an account held
JUDITH by Mejia ‘ ' '
NEGRON :

23 LAWRENCE | Received wire transfer from Medlink account in the | 4/24/09
S. DURAN, approXimate amount of $21,400 to an account held
JUDITH by Mejia
NEGRON

24 LAWRENCE | Received wire transfer from Medlink account in the | 4/24/09
S. DURAN, approximate amount of $21,700 to an account held
JUDITH | by Mejia
NEGRON

25 LAWRENCE | Received wire transfer from Medlink account in the | 4/24/05

\ S. DURAN, approxirhate amount of $23, 600 to an account held
JUDITH by Mejia
NEGRON

26 LAWRENCE | Negotiated Mediink check number 7610 in the 5/12/09
S. DURAN, approximate amount of $14,268.97 using an
JUBITH account held by Mepa
NEGRON

27 LAWRENCE | Negotiated Medlink check nurber 7609 in the 5/15/09
S, DURAN, approximate amount of $13,058.95 using an
JUDITH account ending in 2016 held by Mejia
NEGRON B -

It is further ailéged that the speciﬁed unlawful activity is health care fraud, in violation of Tifle -

18, United States Codé, Section 1347 and conspiracy t¢ defraud the United States and to receive

and pay health care Kkickbacks in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.
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In vigiation of Title 18, Unitcd States Code, Sections 1957 and 2,

COUNTS 28-32
Money Laundering

(18 US.C. § 1956@DE)EH)

1 7 'Pamgrzphq"l throngh: 15 _of the General Allegations section of this_Snperseding

Indictment are realleged and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein.

2..  On or about the dates set forth below, in I\aﬁaxniiDade Cm‘mty, in tb.e Southern
District of Florida, and elsewhere, the d;fcndants listed below did knowingly conduct and
atterpt to conduct a ﬁnauc:ial transaction affecting interstats commerce, which financial
transaction involved the proceeds of specified uulawﬁll actmty, knowing that the property
-m\rolvcd in the finencial transaction rcprcsentad the proceeds of some forma of unlawiul activity,
and knowing that the transaction was dcs1gned in whole and in part to conceal and disguise the
ﬂature, location, éource, ownership and conu'ol_of the proceeds of specified unlawful activity, as

more specifically described below:

| Count| Defendants * Financial Transaction. _ Approx.
. ' ' Date

28 | LAWRENCE S. | Negotiated Medlink check number 3917 in the 1112107
DURAN, approximate amount of $8800 ysing an account
JUDITH ending in 1998 held by
NEGRON : ‘

29 | LAWRENCE 8. | Negotiated Medlnk check number 7608 in the 5/12109
DURAN, approximate amount of $9,052.65 using an account
JUDITH held by Mejia
NEGRON .

30 | LAWRENCE.S. | Negotiated Medlink check number 7704 in the 1 6/19/09
DURAN, approximate amount of $14,268,97 using an account :
MARIANELLA | ending in 1263 on behalf of Andorra Printer Designs
VALERA

- 24




Count | Defendanis Financial Transaction Approx
Date

31 | LAWRENCE S, | Negotiated ATC check number 34355 in the 7127409
DURAN, approximate amount of $14,000.70 using an account -
MARTANELLA |-ending in 4468 oz behalf of Andorra Printer Designs
VALERA

37 | LAWRENCE S, | Negotiated Medlink check mumber 8519 in the 5/28/10
EHR:%;T‘?;——"—&ppmmmte—ammmﬁ%%ﬂ—Hﬁu:mE an-actount
JUDITH held by Mejia ‘
NEGRON : ‘

1t is further alleged that the specified unlawful activity is health care frand, iz viclation of Tile
18, United States Code, Section 1347‘ and conspiracy to defrand the United States and to receive
-and pay inealth care kickbacks in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371.
In violation of Title 18, United Statas Code, Sections 1956(a)(1)BXi) and 2.
COUNTS 33-38

Structuring to Avoid Reporting Reqmrements
(31 U.S.C. § 5324(a)(1) and (d)(ZD)

1, A “cumency transaction report” (“CTR") is a report that is submifted on United
States Department of Treasury (“Treasury™), Financial Crimes Enforcement Network Form 104.
llA dorpestic financial institution is required by federal Iaw to file a CTR with- Treasury for each'
ﬁnanclal transaot:on that involves United States currency in excess of $10,000. Such fi nanclal
transactions include deposits, withdrawals, or cxchangas of currency, or other fransactions

- involving the physical transfer of curency from one person to another.

2. On or about the dates set forth below, in Miami-Dade County, in the Southern
District of Florida, and elsewhere, the defendants listed below did knowingly and for the purpose
of evading the reporh'pg ;cqujramcnts of Title 31, United States Code, Section 5313(&), and the
regulations promulgated therennder, cause and atiempt to cause a domestic financial institution

to fail to file & report required under Title 31, United States Code, Section 5313(a), and the
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regulations promulgated thereunder, while violating another law of the United States and as part

of & pattem of illegel activity involving mere than $100,000 in a 12-month period:

Bank Transactions

Count Defendants Approx.
Date
| Negotiation of the following Medlink check
S TAWRENCE 53723709 Rubers by DURAN: -
DURAN, ' + 7223 in the approx. amt, of $5978.19
i MARIANELLA + 7111 in the approx. amt. of $4126.04
VALERA, s 7073 in the approx. amt. of $4126.03
JUDITH v 7006 in the approx. amt. of $4126,03
NEGRON + 6923 in the approx. amt. of $4126.03
v 5244 ip the approx. amt, of $4104.03
¢ 6876 in the approx. amt. of $4104.04
g Negotiation of the following ATC check uumbers _
by VALERA: :
. s 32095 inthe apprux amt. of $5917.82
» 31821 in the approx. amt. of $3726.74
« 31318 in the approx. amt. of $3726.74
s 31094 in the approx. amt: of $3726.71
s 31842 in the approx. amt. of $280
. _ Negotiation of the foIlow;.ng Me.dhnlc check
34 | LAWRENCES,| s/isip |oumbersby DURAN:
DURAN, © 7637 in the approk. amt. of §4500
MARIANELLA e 7582 in the approx. amt. of $5978.20
JVI?]%I?I‘II{:IA ’ Negotiation of the following ATC check numbers
, by VALERA:
NEGRON :

» 33142in the approx. amt, of $5917.89
s 33304 in the approx. amt, of $4900

Negotiation of the following Mcdlmk check .
numbers by Mejia:

» 7600 in the gpprox. amt. of $7231.56
» 7599 in the approx. amt, of $8950.63
¢ 7598 in the approx. amt. of $3422.25
“» 7805 in the approx. amt. of $5011.58
| 1

7603 in the approx. amt. of $9485.97
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Cn unt Defendants | Approx. Bank Transactions
i Date ’
J : Wegotiation of the follbwing ATC check mimbers
' - t Review Co:
; DURAN, Resources Manegement Review Co |
‘ MARIANELLA 36957 in the approx. amt. of $4999.08
VALERA 36961 in the approx. amt. of $4995.90

36963 in the approx. amt. of $4999.25
36962 in the approx. amt. of $4998.20
36973 in the approx. amt. of $5007.57

Negotiation of the following ATC check numbers
info & bank account on behalf of FREEOF
DIRT.COM CO.:

369355 in the approx. amt. of $4999.98
36959 in the approx. amt, of $4998.20
36963 in the approx. amt. of §4997.99
36967 in the approx, amt. of $5001.00
36971 in the approx. amt. of $5003.01

Negotiation of the following ATC check numbers
into a bank account on behalf of Pulp and Paper Co:

36956 in the approx. amt. of $4998.03
36960 in the approx. amt. of $4999.98
36964 in the approx. amt. of $5005.75
36968 it the approx. amt. of $5000.25
36972 in the approx. amt, of $4995.99 -

Negotiation of the following ATC check numbers
into a bank account on behalf of Stamina
Comrmurication:

36958 in the approx. amt, of $4999,50
36962 in the approx. amt. of $49%0.50
36966 in the approx. amt. of $5008.25
36970 in the approx. amt. of $3007.75
36974 in the approx, amt. of $4954.00

[ ] . - L [ ] - [ ] - - L] - - »-» - »
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Deferdants

Approx.
Date

Bank Transactons

36

LAWRENCE §.
DURAN,
MARIANELLA
VALERA

6/3/10

Negotiation of the following ATC check numbers
into a bank account on behalf of Computer
Resources Management Review Co:

38442 in the approx. amt. of $4098.00
38446 in the approx. amt. of $4180.00

38450 in the approx. amt of $4020.00
38454 in the approx. amt. of $3952.00.

Negotiation of the following ATC check numbers
inio & bank account on behalf of FREE OF
DIRT.COM CO.;

r 38440 in the approx. amt, of $4062.50
e 38444 in the approx, amt. of $4170.50
« 38448 in the approx. amt, of $4165.00
s+ 38452 in the approx. amt. of $3852.00

Negotiation of the following ATC check numbers

L] - - -

| into a bank account on behalf of Pulp and Paper Co:

38441 in the approx. amt. of §3990.50
38445 in the approx. amt, of $3898.50
38449 in the approx. amt. of $4085.00
38453 in the approx. amt, of $4275.00

“Negotiation of the following ATC check numbers

into a bank account on behalf of Starmina
Commymication: -

38443 in the approx. amt. of $3990.98
38447 in the approx. amt. of $3899.02
38451 in the approx. amt. of $4025.00
38455 in the approx. amt. of $4335.00

LAWRENCE 8.
DURAN,
JUDITH
NEGRON

7/16/10

Negotiation of the following Medlink check

numbers by NEGRON:

» 8634 in the approx. ami. of §3,954.18 tp an
account number ending in 7157
» 8645 in the approx. amt. of $3,158.37 to an
account nugber ending in 7157
» 8586 in the approx. amt, of $4,010.C0 to an
acconnt number ending in 7157
" » 8659 in the approx. amt. of $4,900.00
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Count Defendants Approx. Bank Transactions
Date '
Negotiation of the following ATC check numbers
38 LAWRENCE 8 g/13/10 | imic a bank account on behalf of Computer
| DURAR, ' Resources Management Review Co.:
MARIANELLA 39489 in the approx. amt. of $4720.00
VALERA 39493 in the approx. amt. of $4900.00

39497 in the approx. amt. of §4935.20
39501 in the approx, amt. of $4850.25
39509 in the approx. amt. of $4980.75

Negotiation cf the following ATC check numbers

into a bank account on behalf of FREE OF
DIRT.COM €O..

39487 in the approx. amt. of $4835.20
39491 in the approx. amt. of $4899.6C
39495 in the approx. amt. of $4895.70
39499 in the approx. amt. of $4799.30
39507 in the approx. amt. of $4920.80

Negotiation of the fojlowing ATC check numbers
into a hank account on behalf of Pulp and Paper Co:

39488 in the approx. amt, of $4430.75
39492 in the approx. amt. of $4399.80
39496in the approx, amt, of $4646.40
/39500 in the approx. amt, of $4890.30
39508 in the approx. amt. of $4880.00

Negotiation of the following ATC check numbers
into a bank account on behalf of Stamina
Communication:.

39490 in the approx. arat. of $4775.90
39404 in the approx. amt. of $4980.80
39498 in the approx. amt, of $4750.75
39502 in the approx. amt. of $4920.88

- s ® = = * w u w =

a ® & % =

39510 in the approx. amt, of $4580.30

It is further alleged that the other law of the United States violated is health care fraud Title 18,

United States Code, Section 1347 and conspiracy to defraud the United States and to receive and

- pay health care kickbacks in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371 and that ihe

pattern of illegal activity involved more than $1 00,000 in a 12-month period.
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In violation of Title 31 United States Code, Sections 5324(2)(1) aad (d)(2).

CRIMINAL FORFEITURE
(18 U.S.C. § 582)

1. The allegations contained in Counts 1 through 32 of this Superseding Indictment

are realleged and incorporated by reference as though fully set forth herein for the purpose of

a.lleging forfeiture to the Unifted Siates qf America of cerfain property in which LAWRENCE 8§,
DURAN, | MARIANELLA VALERA, JUDITH NEGRON, MARGARITA AC‘E‘?EDO,
ATC, and MEDLINK have an intercst, -

2. ‘Upon conviction of Couats 1 t}m.augh 13, as alleged in this Superseding
Indictment, the defendants, LAWRENCE S, DURAN, MARIANELLA VALERA, JUDITH
NEGRON, MARGARITA ACEvEDo, ATC, and MEDLINK shall forfeit 1o the United
States any propeity, feal or personal, that constitutes or is derived, directly or indirectly, from
gross proceeds traceable to the cqmmissioﬁ' of the offense pursuant to Title 18, United States
Code, Section 982(aX7). | |

3, Upon conviction 'éf Counts 14 through 32, as alleged in this Superseding
Indictment, the defendants, LAWRENCE S. DURAN, MARIANELLA. VALERA, JUDITH
NEGRON, and MARGARITA ACEVEDO shal! forfeit to the United States any properiy that
wag involvéd in the commission of the offense or is traceable to property that was involved in
commission. of the offense pursuant to Title 18, United States Code, Section 982(a)(1).

4. If more than one defenda.nt is convicted of an offense, the defendants so convicted

are jointly and severally liable for the amount derived from such offense.

5. The property which is sub_]ect to forfejture mcludes, but is not limited to, the

following:
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approximately $87,570,954.15, which represents the gross proceeds of the
frand and the money laundering perpetrated by LAWRENCE 8.
DURAN, MARIANELLA VALERA, JUDITH NEGRON,
MARGARITA ACEVEDO, ATC, and MEDLINK: :

2000 Maserati Quattroporte VIN number ZAMIK33A 15004575
registered jo LAWRENCE S, DURAN; -

2008 Lincoln Navigator VIN number SLMFL275881.102728 registered to
MEDLINK and LAWRENCE S. DURAN;

2007 Herley Davidson Motoreycle VIN number JHDIPRBIZTYIS4043 i
registered to LAWRENCE 8. DURAN; :
2006 BMW 750LI VIN number WBAHNE3586DT33071 registered to

" LAWRENCE S. DURAN and MARIANELLA VALERA;

2005 Land Rover Range VIN numbér SALSF25445A209661 registered to
LAWRENCE S. DURAN and MARIANELLA VALERA;

2005 Harley Davidson Motoreycle VIN number 1HD1IDB 1¥57029351
registered to MARTANELLA VALERA;

2010 Land Rover Range VIN number SALMF1D44A309355 registerzc to
MARIANELLA VALERA,

2003 Ford Econoline VIN number 1FBSS31LO3HBG7921 registered to
ATC and MARIANELLA VALERA;

2003 Ford B350 Cutaway VIN number IFDWE3SLX3HB15013
registered to ATC and MARIANELLA VALERA;

2010 Mercedes Benz C300 Sedan VIN number WDDGFSEBGAR050600
registered to MARGARITA ACEVEDO;

property located'at 1809 Nerth Bayshore Drive #3506, Miami-Dade
County, Miami, Florida, 33132, registered to MARTANELLA VALERA;
all funds on deposit and interest acerued thereto at Wachovia Account
ending in 2210 in the name of ATC, up to the amount of $87,570,954.15;
all funds on deposit and interest accrued thereto at Wachovia Account
ending in 5837, in the name of ATC up to the amount of $87,570,954.15;
all funds on deposit and interest accrued thereto at Wachovia Account
ending ir 8219, in the name of ATC, up to the amount of $87,570,954.15;
all funds on deposit and interest accrued thereto at Wachovia Account
ending in 3509, in the name of ATC, up to the amount of $87,570,954.15;

‘all funds on deposit and interest accrued therelo at Wachovia Account

ending in 0318, in the name of ATC, up to the amount of $87,570,954.15;
all funds on deposit and interest accrued thereto at Wachovia Account
ending in 9795, in the name of ATC, up to the amount of §87.570,954.15;
all funds on deposit and interest acerued thereto at ‘Wachovia Account
ending in 6543, in the pame of ATC, up to the amount of $87,570,954.15;
all finds on deposit and interest accrved thereto at Wachovia Account .
ending in 8206, in the name of ATC, up to the amount of $87,570,954.15;
all funds on deposit and interest accrued thereto at Wachovia Account

ending in 0321, in the name of ATC, up 1o the amount of $87.570,954.15;
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V. al! funds oz dcposﬁ and interest accrued thereto at Wachovia Account

ending in 6594, in the name of LAWRENCE S. DURAN, up to the
- amount of $87,570,954.15;

w. ali funds on de:posxt and interest accrned thereto at Wachovia Account

ending in 8378, in the name of LAWRENCE 8. DURAN ¢/o
. MEDLINK, upto the amount of $87,570,954 15,
X: all fimds on deposit and interest accrued thereto at Wachovia Account
ending in 9933, in the name of LAWRENCE 8. DURAN cfo
- MEDLINK. up to the amount of $87.570.934.13; .
y. all funds on d.GPOSI't and interest accrued thereto at Wachovia Accomnt
' ending in 7573, in the name of LAWRENCE 8. DURAN clo
MEDILINK, up to the amount of $87,570,954.15;

Z. 21l funds on deposit and interest accrued thereto at Wachovia Account

ending in 9968, in the name of LAWRENCE S. DURAN ¢/o
- MEDLINK, up to the amonni of $87,570,954.15;

aa,  eallfundson deposn‘ and interest accrued thereto at Wachovia Account
ending in 0680, in the name of MEDLINK, up to the amouxnt of

: $87,570,954,15;

bb. &l fundson deposﬂ and interest accrued thereto at Wa.chowa Account
ending in 0305, in the name of MEDLINK, up to the amount of
$87,570,954.15;

cc.  all fundson dcposn' and interest accrued thereto at Wachovia Account
ending in 9960, in the name of MARIANELLA VALERA, up to the
emount of $87,570,954.15;

dd. =il fundson dcpos1t and interest accrued thereto at Wachowa Account
ending in 4170, in the name of MARIANELLA VALERA, up fo the
amount of $87,570,954.15;

ee. .all fundson dcposn and interest accrued thereto at Wachovia Account
ending in 6072, in the name of MARIANELLA VALERA, up to the

) amount of $87,570,954.15;

. all funds on deposit and interest accrued thereto at Wachovia Account
ending in 0469, in the name of MARIANELLA VALERA, wp to the
amount of $87,570,954.15; and

gg.  all funds on deposit and interest accrued thereto at Wachovia Account
ending in 6098, in the name of MARIANELLA VALERA, up to the
amount of $87,570,954.15.

é. If any of the property described above, as a result of any act or omission of the

defendants:

a, cannot be located upon the exercise of due diligence;
b. has been transferred or sold to, or deposited with, & third party;

c. . has been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the court;
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d. has been subsiantially diminished in value; or

e, has been commingled with other property which cannot be divided without
difficulty,

the United States of America shall be entitled to forfeinare of subsﬁﬁltc property pursuani 1o Titic
| 21, United States Code, Sec.tiﬂon 833(p). as inwrpora.te.d. by Title 18, United States Code, Section
o82L)(1). "
Al pursuant to Title 18, United Stai‘cs’ Code, Section 982(2)(7) and the procedures

outlined in Title 21, United States Code, Section 853,

A TRUEBILL

L i
3 o

| | | Kf?ﬁé@ééﬁ
@/\/ &\; %% (/7.4,,,,_( ﬂ-ﬁ_.. '

REDO A, FERRER
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
S0 RN DIS ST OF FLORIDA

BOND WALTHER
DEPYTY CHIER _
c AL DIVISION, FRAUD SECTION
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

/a‘awﬂyﬂ SA0LINO
MARIA GONZALEZ CALVET

-JOSEPH S. BEEMSTERBOER
TRIAL ATTORNEYS - |
CRIMINAL DIVISION, FRAUD SECTION -
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE o

33




